






April 2, 2019 Planning Commission Meeting Minutes Page 1 of 13

CITY OF ELKO
PLANNING COMMISSION

REGULAR MEETING MINUTES
5:30 P.M., P.D.S.T., TUESDAY, APRIL 2, 2019
ELKO CITY HALL, COUNCIL CHAMBERS,
1751 COLLEGE AVENUE, ELKO, NEVADA

NOTE: The order of the minutes reflects the order business was conducted.

CALL TO ORDER

Jeff Dalling, Chairman of the City of Elko Planning Commission, called the meeting to order at
5:30 p.m.

ROLL CALL

Present: Evi Buell
Jeff Dalling
John Anderson
Stefan Beck
Tera Hooiman
Ian Montgomery

Excused: Gratton Miller

City Staff: Scott Wilkinson, Assistant City Manager
Cathy Laughlin, City Planner,
Michele Rambo, Development Manager
John Holmes, Fire Marshal
Shelby Archuleta, Planning Technician

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

COMMENTS BY THE GENERAL PUBLIC

Cathy Laughlin, City Planner, introduced Michele Rambo as the Development Manager.

Michele Rambo, Development Manager, told the Commission about herself.

APPROVAL OF MINUTES

March 5, 2019 – Regular Meeting FOR POSSIBLE ACTION

***Motion: Approved the minutes from the March 5th meeting as presented.

Moved by Tera Hooiman, Seconded by Evi Buell.

*Motion passed. (4-0, Commissioners Montgomery and Anderson abstained)



April 2, 2019 Planning Commission Meeting Minutes Page 2 of 13

I. NEW BUSINESS

A. PUBLIC HEARING

1. Review and consideration of Tentative Map No. 5-19, filed by Granite Holdings,
LLC, for the development of a subdivision entitled Orchard Cove Unit 2 involving
the proposed division of approximately 6.947 acres of property into 19 lots and a
remainder parcel for residential development within the R (Single-Family and
Multiple-Family Residential) Zoning District, and matters related thereto. FOR
POSSIBLE ACTION

The subject property is located generally south of the intersection of Colt Drive and
Winchester Drive. (APN 001-958-004)

Robert Howard, R&H Construction Services representing Granite Holdings, explained that this
was a filler project. They had walked through an extensive process with staff to get everything
within Code. There are three notes that they can comply with before City Council consideration,
which are to provide the engineer’s email address, the legal description, and something else. The
one thing that would be a catch 22, was that Lot 8, which is a corner lot, doesn’t meet the
requirements. Staff recommended that they proceed with that being a corner lot. He strongly
encouraged the Commission to go forward with that change to City Council.

Ms. Laughlin went over the City of Elko Staff Report dated March 21, 2019. Staff recommended
conditional approval with the findings and conditions listed in the Staff Report.

Ms. Rambo had no comments.

Ms. Laughlin stated that all staff comments and conditions were included in the Staff Report.

John Holmes, Fire Marshal, recommended approval.

Scott Wilkinson, Assistant City Manager, recommended approval as presented by staff.

***Motion: Forward a recommendation to City Council to conditionally approve Tentative
Map No. 5-19 with the conditions in the City of Elko Staff Report dated March 21, 2019,
listed as follows:

1. The subdivider is to comply with all provisions of the NAC and NRS pertaining to
the proposed subdivision.

2. Tentative map approval constitutes authorization for the sub-divider to proceed
with preparation of the final map and associated construction plans.

3. Tentative map approval does not constitute authorization to proceed with site
improvements, with the exception of authorized grading, prior to approval of the
construction plans by the City and the State.

4. The applicant submits an application for final map within a period of four (4) years



April 2, 2019 Planning Commission Meeting Minutes Page 3 of 13

in accordance with NRS 278.360(1)(a). Approval of the tentative map will
automatically lapse at that time.

5. A soils report is required with final map submittal.

6. A hydrology report is required with final map submittal.

7. Final map construction plans improvements are to comply with Chapter 3-3 of City
code.

8. The subdivision design and construction shall comply with Title 9 Chapter 8 of City
code.

9. The Utility Department will issue an Intent to serve letter upon approval of the
tentative map by the City Council.

10. A modification from standards be approved by City Council for Lot 8 to have a
reduced minimum lot area for a corner lot.

11. Revise the tentative map to include the legal description: Parcel 5 of File No. 504955.
The revision is required prior to City Council consideration of the tentative map.

12. Revise the tentative map to include a note specifying the side, front and rear lot line
easements. The revision is required prior to City Council consideration of the
tentative map.

13. Revise the tentative map to include the engineer’s email address. The revision is
required prior to City Council consideration of the tentative map.

Commissioner Buell’s findings to support the motion was the proposed subdivision and
development is in conformance with the Land Use Component of the Master Plan. The
proposed subdivision and development is in conformance with the Transportation
Component of the Master Plan. The proposed subdivision and development does not
conflict with the Airport Master Plan. The proposed subdivision does not conflict with the
City of Elko Development Feasibility, Land Use, Water Infrastructure, Sanitary Sewer
Infrastructure, Transportation Infrastructure and Annexation Potential Report –
November 2012. The property is not located within the Redevelopment Area. The proposed
subdivision and development are in conformance with the Wellhead Protection Program.
The sanitary sewer will be connected to a programed sewer system and all street drainage
will report to a storm sewer system. A zoning amendment is not required. In accordance
with Section 3-3-5(E)(2) the proposed subdivision and development will not result in undue
water or air pollution based on the following: a. There are no obvious considerations or
concerns which indicate the proposed subdivision would not be in conformance with all
applicable environmental and health laws and regulations. b. There is adequate capacity
within the City’s water supply to accommodate the proposed subdivision. c. The proposed
subdivision and development will not create an unreasonable burden on the existing water
supply. d. There is adequate capacity at the Water Reclamation Facility to support the
proposed subdivision and development. e. The proposed subdivision and development will
be connected to the City’s programmed sanitary sewer system, therefore the ability of soils
to support waste disposal does not require evaluation prior to Tentative Map approval. f.



April 2, 2019 Planning Commission Meeting Minutes Page 4 of 13

Utilities are available in the immediate area and can be extended for the proposed
development. g. Schools, Fire and Police and Recreation Services are available throughout
the community. h. The proposed subdivision and development is in conformance with
applicable zoning ordinances and is in conformance with the Master Plan. i. The proposed
subdivision and development will not cause unreasonable traffic congestion or unsafe
conditions with respect to existing or proposed streets. j. The area is not located within a
designated flood zone. Concentrated storm water runoff has been addressed as shown on
the grading plan. k. The proposed subdivision and development is not expected to result in
unreasonable erosion or reduction in the water holding capacity of the land thereby
creating a dangerous or unhealthy condition. The proposed subdivision submittal is in
conformance with Section 3-3-6 of City Code, with the following exception: Legal
Description is not shown on the Tentative Map. This is not a significant deficiency. The
proposed subdivision is in conformance with Section 3-3-9 of City Code. The proposed
subdivision is in conformance with Section 3-3-10 of City Code. The proposed subdivision
is in conformance with Section 3-3-11 of City Code. The proposed subdivision is in
conformance with Section 3-3-12 of City Code. The proposed subdivision is in conformance
with Section 3-3-13 of City Code with the approval of Lot 8 not meeting the minimum area
for a corner lot. The proposed subdivision is in conformance with Section 3-3-14 of City
Code with the following exception: A not should be added to the Tentative Map stating the
front, side and rear lot line easements. This is not a significant deficiency. The proposed
subdivision is in conformance with Section 3-3-15 of City Code. The proposed subdivision
and development is in conformance with Section 3-2-3 of City Code. The proposed
subdivision and development is in conformance with Section 3-2-4 of City Code. The
proposed subdivision and development is in conformance with Section 3-2-5(E)(2).
Conformance with Section 3-2-5(E) is required as the subdivision develops. The proposed
subdivision and development is in conformance with Section 3-2-5(G) of City Code with the
approval of the modification of standard for Lot 8 minimum lot area. The proposed
subdivision and development is in conformance with Section 3-2-17. Conformance with
Section 3-2-17 is required as the subdivision develops. The proposed subdivision and
development is not located in a designated special flood hazard area and is in conformance
with Section 3-8 of City Code. The proposed subdivision design shall conform to Title 9
Chapter 8 of City Code.

Moved by Evi Buell, Seconded by Tera Hooiman.

*Motion passed unanimously. (6-0)

B. MISCELLANEOUS ITEMS, PETITIONS, AND COMMUNICATIONS

1. Review, consideration, and possible approval of Final Map No. 6-19, filed by
Copper Trails, LLC, for the development of a subdivision entitled Copper Trails
Phase 2 involving the proposed division of approximately 19.194 acres of property
into 29 lots and 1 remainder parcel for residential development within the R (Single
Family and Multiple Family Residential) Zoning District, and matters related
thereto. FOR POSSIBLE ACTION

The subject property is located at the intersection of Copper Street and Mittry
Avenue. (APN 001-610-114)



April 2, 2019 Planning Commission Meeting Minutes Page 5 of 13

Ms. Laughlin went over the City of Elko Staff Report dated March 18, 2019. Staff recommended
approval with the findings and conditions listed in the Staff Report.

Ms. Rambo had no comments and agreed with the approval recommendation.

Mr. Holmes recommended approval.

Mr. Wilkinson recommended approval as presented by staff.

***Motion: Forward a recommendation to City Council to conditionally approve Final
Map No. 6-19 with the conditions in the City of Elko Staff Report dated March 18, 2019,
listed as follows:

1. Recommend that the City Council accept on behalf of the public the parcels of land
offered for dedication for public use in conformity with the terms of the offer of
dedication.

2. The Developer shall execute a Performance Agreement in accordance with Section
3-3-21 of City Code. The Performance Agreement shall be secured in accordance
with Section 3-3-22 of City Code.

3. In conformance with Section 3-3-21 of City Code, the public improvements shall be
completed within a time of no later than two (2) years of the date of Final Plat
approval by the City Council unless extended as stipulated in City Code.

4. The Performance Agreement shall be approved by the City Council at the time of
final map approval by the City Council.

5. The Developer shall execute the Performance Agreement within 30 days of approval
of the final map by City Council.

6. The final map is approved for 29 single family residential lots and 1 remainder lot.

7. The Utility Department will issue a Will Serve Letter upon City Council approval of
the final map.

8. State approvals of the construction plans and final map are required.

9. Final revision and approval of the construction plans as outlined is staff’s letter
dated March 21, 2019 is required.

10. The Owner/Developer is to provide the appropriate contact information for the
qualified engineer and engineering firm contracted to oversee the project along with
the required inspection and testing necessary to produce an As-Built for submittal
to the City of Elko. The Engineer of Record is to ensure all materials meet the latest
edition Standard Specifications for Public Works.

11. Construction, with the exception of grading, shall not commence prior to Final plat
approval by the City Council, issuance of a will serve letter by the city and approval
of the construction plans by the State.



April 2, 2019 Planning Commission Meeting Minutes Page 6 of 13

Commissioner Buell’s findings to support the motion were the Final Map for Copper Trails
Phase 2 has been presented before expiration of the subdivision proceedings in accordance
with NRS 278.360(1)(a)(2) and City Code. The Final Map is in conformance with the
Tentative Map. The proposed subdivision is in conformance with the Land Use Component
of the Master Plan. The proposed subdivision is in conformance with the Transportation
Component of the Master Plan. Conformance with the Redevelopment Plan is not
required. The proposed subdivision submittal is in conformance with 3-3-7 of City Code;
Final Map Stage III. The subdivision submittal is in conformance with Section 3-3-8,
Content and Format of Final Map submittal. The subdivision is in conformance with 3-3-9
– General Provisions for Subdivision Design: a. Specifically, the subdivision does not
appear to be unsuitable for use by reason of flooding, concentrated runoff, inadequate
drainage, adverse soil or rock formation, extreme topography, erosion susceptibility or
similar conditions which are likely to prove harmful to the health and safety and general
welfare of the community or the future property owner. The subdivision is in conformance
with 3-3-10 – Street Location and Arrangement. The subdivision is in conformance with 3-
3-11 – Street Design. The subdivision is in conformance with 3-3-12 – Block Design. The
subdivision is in conformance with 3-3-13 – Lot Planning. The subdivision is in
conformance with 3-3-14 – Easement Planning. The subdivision is in conformance with 3-3-
15 – Street Naming. The subdivision is in conformance with 3-3-16 – Street Lighting Design
Standards. The Developer shall be responsible for all required improvements in
conformance with Section 3-3-17 of City Code. The Developer has submitted construction
plans in conformance with Section 3-3-18 of City Code. The plans have been conditionally
approved by staff as identified in its staff’s letter dated March 21, 2019. The Developer is
required to conform with all requirements stipulated in Section 3-3-19 of City Code. The
Developer has submitted construction plans in conformance with Section 3-3-20 of City
Code. The Developer is required to enter into a Performance Agreement to conform to
Section 3-3-21 of City Code. The Developer is required to provide a Performance and
Maintenance Guarantee as stipulated in the Performance Agreement in conformance with
Section 3-3-22 of City Code. The proposed subdivision is in conformance with Section 3-8,
Floodplain Management.

Moved by Evi Buell, Seconded by Tera Hooiman.

*Motion passed unanimously. (6-0)

A. PUBLIC HEARING

2. Review, consideration, and possible adoption of Resolution 1-19, containing
amendments to the Atlas Map #12 and the Transportation Component of the City of
Elko Master Plan, and matters related thereto. FOR POSSIBLE ACTION

Planning Commission reviewed and initiated the amendment to the City of Elko
Master Plan at its March 5, 2019 meeting.

Ms. Laughlin explained that the Master Plan, by NRS, allows the City to do four modifications
per year. There was one amendment last year to the Transportation Component. As things start to
develop thought out the City different things come in to play and staff has to look at the Master
Plan, as stated in the staff reports, on every application; specifically the Land Use and
Transportation Components. There was an application for a Stage I Subdivision Meeting that
was for a property off of El Armuth. With looking at that subdivision, staff started looking at El
Armuth Drive, the way El Armuth Drive is from Celtic Way south, and from Mountain City
Highway to Sagecrest Drive. When staff is doing an evaluation on a subdivision and they are



April 2, 2019 Planning Commission Meeting Minutes Page 7 of 13

looking at the Transportation Component they are looking at all aspects of it. The area was
developed in very large parcels. The area between parcels was called out as a parcel on the
original map with owner ship of the original map producer. It was not called out as a dedicated
roadway at that time. El Armuth is shown to have continuation all the way to Mountain City
Highway. In the written portion of the Transportation Component it specifies El Armuth Drive is
from Mountain City Highway down to the I-80 frontage. Two of the abutting property owners
did a quiet claim deed on the parcel and took over ownership of that half of the road. There was
no way for the City to have connectivity from Mountain City Highway down to the I-80 frontage
with El Armuth Drive. There is also a large drainage that would make it unfeasible for the City
to do a continuation of the roadway. The Transportation Component calls out El Armuth Drive
as a residential roadway. Staff is proposing to add Mountain City Highway to Sagecrest Drive
and Celtic Way to Hondo Lane. El Armuth is already a developed road from Mountain City
Highway to Sagecrest Drive, which staff is proposing to keep. Staff is proposing to eliminate El
Armuth Drive in the Master Plan from Sagecrest to Celtic. From Celtic, El Armuth would
continue to Hondo Lane. The reason that it cannot continue to tie it into a future roadway is
because there is a residence in the way, and there is no way that the City would purchase it to
continue El Armuth Drive to tie it into a future road along I-80. When we look at a Master Plan
and we look at the Transportation Component we have several things we look at. We look at
long range planning, what is within the city limits, what is not in the city limits, etc. The long
range planning here is for Cattle Drive connectivity between Exit 298 and Mountain City
Highway. We have that right-of-way and are working on acquiring the final piece and that will
be the major way through the connectivity of Exit 298 to Mountain City Highway. The City has
property that has potential for annexation. If that property were to develop and they were
required to have a secondary access, how would they gain it? They could come back to Cattle
Drive, or they could tie into Sundance. Ms. Laughlin pointed out a large portion of property that
was in the County. We are not proposing to build any road in the County. We are simply looking
at a long range plan on the future development of the area that is in the City limits. The major
road is proposed as Cattle Drive. There are properties north of I-80 that are listed for potential
annexation. What is being proposed, since eliminating the connectivity of El Armuth to the
frontage road, is adding connectivity of Sundance Drive to the frontage road.

Ed Lamb, 2270 Chism Drive, asked how many of the audience members were in attendance
because they were concerned with traffic on Sundance. (Everyone raised their hand) He then
asked how many were opposed to the traffic and the connectivity of Sundance. (Most people
raised their hands) Mr. Lamb said they liked the closure they have on Sundance. It is nice for
their kids to run around and ride their bikes, because they don’t have through traffic. If Sundance
was hooked to the Interstate on the west side, that would expose them to the traffic coming off of
the Interstate, more traffic, people coming through, and a possibility of more crime. There are a
lot things that they don’t like.  He understood that El Armuth was locked off, but the City has
never maintained El Armuth, which was supposed to be their safety valve if something happened
to Sundance. He didn’t remember ever seeing a blade on that road. He asked if the City were to
develop that area how they would tie onto Sundance. He didn’t think anyone would vote for it.
He asked if the City would declare eminent domain. He asked if that would be something the
City was willing to do. He was worried about trucks going on Cattle Drive to Mountain City
Highway. The minute that is opened up for exposure it would devalue their property. He thought
that was going to be a problem. If the City comes in and ties in, even with eminent domain, they
are in the County. They have no voter representation, they are not City residents. He asked how
that played in. Overall Mr. Lamb was opposed to the tie on Sundance.



April 2, 2019 Planning Commission Meeting Minutes Page 8 of 13

Ms. Laughlin explained that all the vacant properties north of I-80 are in private hands. They
don’t belong to the City of Elko and they don’t belong Elko County. If a private property owner
wanted to annex into the City, staff looks at a variety of things based on Nevada Revised Statutes
on annexing in property to the City of Elko. If they want to develop the property they would be
responsible for any roadway development throughout their development. The City of Elko has no
intentions of building any roadway. We have no intention of building Sundance or El Armuth
connectivity. We don’t have any intention of annexing in any of that property at this point as the
City, or eminent domain. The Master Plan is a long range planning document that is showing a
future roadway. If a property is going to develop the developer will be responsible for
developing the roadway along the frontage of their property. That’s how roadways get
developed. There has to be a long range plan that shows what the future roadways are going to
be. The connectivity of Sundance was just shown as a potential access out of the frontage road
connectivity. The City has no intention of doing anything with that, because the properties are in
private hands, and the City doesn’t have a need for any connectivity. Staff has had conversation
in regards to this issue, and they are fine with leaving in the proposed frontage road and
eliminating the Hondo to the proposed frontage, and leaving it as that.

Mr. Wilkinson stated that the City has no authorities for eminent domain outside of its
incorporated boundaries, so that wouldn’t be a concern. There is a lot of concern, because of the
way this area was mapped the intent of a lot of the parcels was for roadway purposes. Sundance
is a right-of-way that is accepted by the County but not for maintenance purposes, so it is a little
bit of a grey area. He thought the Master Plan had always shown some connectivity to El
Armuth. Staff had proposed eliminating certain sections of El Armuth, because of ownership
difficulties. Any master planning doesn’t indicate that a road will get constructed. He gave
Errecart Boulevard as an example, which is located on the south side of the community, which is
shown as a future roadway. There is no right-of-way. Whether or not it ever becomes a roadway
is open to acquisition of right-of-way, which is the same as Cattle Drive. The City had to acquire
property from private property owners and the BLM in order for that alignment to be created to
allow for the possibility of a roadway. Mr. Wilkinson thought Ms. Laughlin brought up a good
point. Everyone raised their hands and expressed concerns about connectivity from Sundance to
the frontage road. He thought there were a lot of opportunities. We already have easements of
record at the bottom of Sundance that provide access to Cattle Drive. As property develops, they
can figure out other roadway issues. The one benefit providing a connectivity would show is
providing emergency ingress and egress, and different options. If the Planning Commission
determines, based on public testimony, that it’s not an appropriate point of connection for
Sundance to frontage, Mr. Wilkinson didn’t see that as a real issue. He thought they were
classified as Residential Collectors, they aren’t Arterials, and they aren’t intended to move a lot
of traffic. Sundance is very complicated at the bottom. The County has approved some
realignments that put jogs into the whole roadway, which makes it more complicated to ever
have any point of connection. He thought that was something that everyone here thought wasn’t
appropriate to have included in amendment to the Master Plan. Mr. Wilkinson didn’t think it was
that critical. He thought the frontage road shown was appropriate, along with the Cattle Drive
corridor.

Robert Colon, Royal Crest, said he had a question for staff. He asked if they looked at evaluating
the access road connecting with Jennings Way.



April 2, 2019 Planning Commission Meeting Minutes Page 9 of 13

Mr. Wilkinson explained that the real issue was that there was a property down below Jennings
that had pretty steep topography. The end of Jennings connecting to a frontage road would be
ideal, except that there is such a grade differential when you come off the end of Jennings to
drop down to the I-80 corridor. It’s just not feasible to build a road off of that grade. Because of
that issue the City has always had El Armuth as a potential road that would serve that
incorporated area. That is the only access to get to that area, if it were to ever develop. If
someone were to want to develop that area they would have to come off Celtic Way and improve
that road on El Armuth to get into that area. That is why we show El Armuth as having some
potential connectivity there, even though there is a piece of private property that complicated that
issue. When staff took a look at some more recent activities, where they have had some quiet
claims acquire portions of parcels that complicate El Armuth tying all the way to Sagecrest and
Mountain City Highway, it just didn’t make sense to continue with that.

Mr. Colon asked if the frontage road would access the 298 interchange.

Mr. Wilkinson said eventually. You get into some grade differential there. But, we like to show
that frontage road, because that is going to be along the I-80 corridor, and it would be a more
intense land use. We would like to see if someone were to propose development there that they
figure out how to do that. That is one of the things that is important with a Master Plan
document. If you don’t show the preference to have that road developed, and someone comes in
to develop property they don’t have work on that issue. If it’s in the Master Plan that that is the
goal, then they would need to address that issue. We leave it up to the developers and their
engineers to figure out how to resolve the conflicts. There are definitely some grade challenges
there.

Mr. Colon said the biggest concern was that it would generate traffic coming off of the 298
interchange. With the interchange directly onto it, it would be like a shortcut through Sundance
onto Mountain City Highway. He asked if there was a way of limiting the size of the trucks that
would go down it.

Mr. Wilkinson said that could be done by Code, you could have truck routes. Mr. Wilkinson saw
Cattle Drive being developed and providing that type of access, rather than a truck being routed
up through Sundance. That was definitely a concern if there was a point of connection there.

Mr. Colon was worried about a cattle truck coming off of Mountain City Highway and getting
onto I-80.

Mr. Wilkinson said that was definitely a concern. Cattle Drive’s intended to be the Arterial that
connects up to Mountain City Highway.

Chairman Jeff Dalling didn’t think that it was that big of a shortcut.

Mr. Wilkinson mentioned that the last lot on Sundance had a pretty steep hill.

Bill Caughey, 2295 Rio Bravo Road, said he was concerned about this road. He wanted the
Committee to consider taking Sundance off, because of the potential dangers of heavy traffic
through there, no sidewalks, small streets, and a lot of children playing. He thought it should get
moved to Cattle Drive. At the end of Sundance there is a zig-zag in the road, and some properties



April 2, 2019 Planning Commission Meeting Minutes Page 10 of 13

that would have to be bought, because there is no width to the road to put any kind of traffic
through there.

Chairman Dalling didn’t think the City had a big appetite to change Sundance. He thought they
should amend and get rid of the El Armuth and get rid of the connectivity down at the frontage
way. He thought that would be a win for everyone. He said some of this was cleaning up. The
City doesn’t touch County property at all, it is just El Armuth should have been a future
connector, but it can’t because they did the quit claim. That is what triggered all of this. He
thought if they took the connectivity from El Armuth to the frontage road, and the connectivity
from Sundance to the frontage road, off that everyone would win.

Pat Colon, Royal Crest, asked in the future if that property were to annex in if there would be
any protection from changes then. She asked what guarantees they had for the future.

Chairman Dalling explained that development happens over time. If it is private property, they
annex into the City, and they develop it they will have to provide their own secondary access. If
you still own half of the road, then they can’t touch your road.

Mr. Wilkinson explained that the purple line on the Master Plan Atlas 12 shows that Sundance is
a Residential Collector. That is pretty significant when the City considers any type of
development, or any type of access. What that drives is that it is a road that has to meet a certain
right-of-way width. It also has to have curb, gutter, and sidewalk. That is the profile for the road
segment. By showing that as a Residential Collector, the City has had prior annexation
applications about mid-point on Sundance Drive. One of the things that has come up is if
someone wants to annex that property, they would have to develop that road to meet the
standard. When the developer is faced with some of those costs and those circumstances they
don’t do it. Even though we don’t show connectivity, the Master Plan will still show it as a
purple line, which is a Residential Collector, and developers will still be faced with the upgrades
to that road to be in conformance with the Master Plan. The City can’t provide any guarantee on
how a County road might get utilized in the future. If there are any annexations in the area the
adjacent property owners will get notified.

Don Hamilton, 1885 Janie Lane, said one of the questions that came up with Ms. Colon was
what protections do they have, as county residents, against someone that wants to annex them
into the City. If they don’t want to be annexed into the City, how does that happen if everyone
around starts putting applications in to be annexed?

Mr. Wilkinson explained that there are two ways that property is annexed into the City. One is
where the property owners petition to be brought into the City. The second is a forced
annexation, where the City goes out and says we are going to annex you. The City of Elko
doesn’t practice forced annexations. What discourages that is the existing infrastructure. So,
Sundance has very narrow streets that don’t meet City standards. There has been a lot of
conversation on whether the City should take a look at all of that area that is an island. When you
look at all the infrastructure burden that the City would inherit to annex that property. It doesn’t
make sense for the City to go do that. All those roads were dedicated for public use, but not
maintenance by the County of Elko, so Sundance residents have been maintaining those roads.
The City doesn’t do that. If it annexes property it maintains those roadways. None of them have
curb, gutter, and sidewalk, they are narrow roads, and the pavement is probably pretty aged.



April 2, 2019 Planning Commission Meeting Minutes Page 11 of 13

Those are things that the City would consider and it just doesn’t make sense that the assessed
valuation would pay for the infrastructure maintenance costs for the City of Elko. A guarantee
would be any type of annexation is either initiated by property owners or initiated by the
jurisdiction. You have rights to have a hearing.

Mr. Hamilton asked if it was a possible scenario to have them become a surrounded island. (Yes)

Ms. Laughlin said that with any type of annexation application you would be receiving the public
hearing notifications, as you received with the hearing today.

Many people claimed that they didn’t received any notification.

Shelby Archuleta, Planning Technician, explained that with an Amendment to the Master Plan
notifications are only required to be published in the newspaper and notices to the property
owners were not required under NRS.

Jorja Muir, 2157 High Noon Road, explained that they maintain their own streets and Sundance
Drive is one of them. She asked if this had anything to do with the big Komatsu thing that just
went in.

Mr. Wilkinson said that this was not related to that development. Komatsu’s access will be
directly onto the freeway.

Ms. Muir said if this was used as a connector, that road would have to be changed. It wouldn’t
support that kind of traffic and then they would be responsible for Sundance Drive.

Mr. Wilkinson said if this was ever a roadway that was utilized to facilitate traffic movements
for the City of Elko, the City of Elko would be maintaining it.

Ms. Muir said the things she was worried about were the aesthetics of their neighborhood would
be ruined, the property values would go down, and the safety. She said she was against it and she
thought the Commission should shelf the issue and return later down the road.

Chairman Dalling said that was what they were trying to do.

Mr. Wilkinson wanted the public to be aware of what needed to be done. The City of Elko needs
to address El Armuth in its Master Plan. Staff is recommending that the Planning Commission,
and the City Council, amend the Master Plan to address El Armuth. We need to go forward with
the process to address the issues on El Armuth. The question tonight is, as a part of that process,
do we show the connectivity to Sundance. Mr. Wilkinson thought the Planning Commission
could say that isn’t a good idea and we don’t want to include that connectivity in this
amendment. The Master Plan still needs to be amended to deal with El Armuth.

Chairman Dalling felt that was a good win for everyone.

Ms. Rambo said Community Development was good with leaving Sundance the way it is.

Mr. Holmes had no comments.



April 2, 2019 Planning Commission Meeting Minutes Page 12 of 13

Mr. Wilkinson recommended that the Planning Commission consider eliminating the
connectivity to Sundance Drive, eliminating the connectivity on El Armuth as proposed by the
Planning Department, and he thought the Commission would have to be specific that the exhibits
are revised accordingly before this would be presented to the City Council.

Ms. Laughlin agreed with Mr. Wilkinson.

***Motion: Direct staff to remove the connection from Sundance Drive to frontage road,
eliminate the connection of El Armuth to the frontage road, and bring this back at the next
meeting.

Moved by Evi Buell, Seconded by Ian Montgomery.

*Motion passed unanimously. (6-0)

II. REPORTS

A. Summary of City Council Actions.

Ms. Laughlin reported that at the City Council meetings on March 12th and March 26th

they continued to table the Great Basin Estates Final Map 11-18. It still has a cease and
desist. There has been little bit of communication from NDEP on it, with some requested
revisions. That will continue to be tabled until there is a resolution. City Council
approved the Final Map 14-18 for Tower Hill Phase 2 and the Performance Agreement.
They accepted a granting of an easement for a new water line and roadway access to the
water line that is associated with Vacation 2-19, which was for the Shippy property. They
held the public hearing for the Shippy Vacation and approved Resolution 6-19.

B. Summary of Redevelopment Agency Actions.

Ms. Laughlin said there would be a RAC Meeting on April 25th at 4pm.

C. Professional articles, publications, etc.

1. Zoning Bulletin

D. Miscellaneous Elko County

E. Training

Ms. Laughlin provide a new book for training this month. She was looking for comments
back on it. Keep in mind that the webcast is always on YouTube from last month.

Chairman Dalling appreciated any training that they could get.

COMMENTS BY THE GENERAL PUBLIC



April 2, 2019 Planning Commission Meeting Minutes Page 13 of 13

There were no public comments at this time.

NOTE: The Chairman or Vice Chairman reserves the right to change the order of the agenda
and if the agenda is not completed, to recess the meeting and continue on another
specified date and time. Additionally, the Planning Commission reserves the right to
combine two or more agenda items, and/or remove an item from the agenda, or delay
discussion relating to an item on the agenda at any time.

ADJOURNMENT

There being no further business, the meeting was adjourned.

Jeff Dalling, Chairman Tera Hooiman, Secretary



Agenda Item # I.A.1. 

Created on 03/20/2019  Planning Commission Action Sheet 

Elko City Planning Commission 
Agenda Action Sheet 

 

1. Title: Review, consideration, and possible adoption of Resolution 1-19, containing 

amendments to the Atlas Map #12 and Transportation Component of the City of 

Elko Master Plan, and matters related thereto. FOR POSSIBLE ACTION 

 

2. Meeting Date: May 7, 2019 

 

3. Agenda Category: PUBLIC HEARINGS 

 

4. Time Required: 30 Minutes 

 

5. Background Information: Planning Commission reviewed and initiated the 

amendment to the City of Elko Master Plan at its March 5, 2019 meeting and made 

additional changes to the amendments at their April 2, 2019 meeting. 
 

6. Business Impact Statement: Not Required 

 

7. Supplemental Agenda Information: Transportation document and Atlas map #12. 

 

8. Recommended Motion: Move to adopt Resolution 1-19, containing amendments to 

the Transportation Component and Atlas map #12 of the City of Elko Master Plan; 

directing that an attested copy of the foregoing parts, amendments, extensions of 

and/or additions to the Elko City Master Plan be certified to the City Council; 

further directing that an attested copy of this Commission’s report on the proposed 

changes and additions shall have be filed with the City Council; and recommending 

to City Council to adopt said amendments by resolution. CL 
 

9. Prepared By: Cathy Laughlin, City Planner 

 

10. Agenda Distribution:  





CITY OF ELKO
Planning Department

1751 College Avenue · Elko, Nevada 89801 · (775) 777-7160 · Fax (775) 777-7119

Website: www.elkocity.com
Email: planning@ci.elko.nv.us

Memorandum
To: Planning Commission
From: Cathy Laughlin –City Planner
Date: April 3, 2019
Meeting Date: Tuesday, May 7, 2019

Agenda Item:

1. Review, consideration, and possible adoption of Resolution 1-19, containing amendments
to the Atlas Map #12 and the Transportation Component of the City of Elko Master Plan,
and matters related thereto. FOR POSSIBLE ACTION

Additional Information:

The City of Elko Master Plan Transportation component and Atlas Map #12 show El Armuth
Drive extending from Mountain City Highway to a frontage road along I-80. The existing
mapped area for El Armuth Drive is not actual dedicated right-of-way but is a parcel (Parcel C)
owned by the original property owner or their heirs of the original map recorded with Elko
County Recorder as File No. 30415 recorded 5/31/1967. With a recent Stage 1 subdivision
meeting, Staff has determined that the extension from Sagecrest Drive to Celtic Way is very
unlikely.  There have been two property owners on Royal Crest Drive which have done a quiet
claim deed on portions of Parcel C adjacent to their property and therefore we would never have
a full 60’ right-of-way width without those same property owners dedicating it back to the City
of Elko.  There is also a large drainage between Royal Crest Drive and Celtic Way that would be
cost prohibitive to develop the roadway. We are proposing to eliminate the connection of El
Armuth from Sagecrest Drive to Celtic Way. El Armuth south of Celtic Way towards I-80, there
is a property south of Hondo Lane in which the City of Elko would have to acquire in order to
have connectivity to the future I-80 frontage road. We propose to eliminate the extension of El
Armuth south of Hondo Lane to the I-80 frontage road.



ELKO CITY PLANNING COMMISSION
RESOLUTION NO. 1-19

A RESOLUTION OF THE ELKO CITY PLANNING COMMISSION
AMENDING THE ELKO CITY MASTER PLAN UPDATING THE PROPOSED
FUTURE ROADWAY NETWORK MAP ATLAS #12 AND TRANSPORTATION

COMPONENT BY ELIMINATING THE CONNECTION OF EL ARMUTH
DRIVE BETWEEN SAGECREST DRIVE AND CELTIC WAY AND

ELIMINATING THE EXTENTION OF EL ARMUTH TO THE FUTURE I-80
FRONTAGE ROAD

WHEREAS, the Elko City Planning Commission conducted a public hearing in
accordance with Nevada Revised Statutes, Section 278.210 and the Elko City Code,
Section 3-4-12, and

WHEREAS, the Elko City Planning Commission received public input, and reviewed and
examined documents and materials related to amending Proposed Future Roadway
Network Atlas Map #12 and the Transportation Component of the Elko City Master Plan.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Elko City Planning Commission that
amended portions of the Elko City Master Plan within the Proposed Future Roadway
Network Map Atlas #12 and the Transportation Component, are attached hereto at
Exhibit 1 and 2, and that the amendments to the Elko City Master Plan attached hereto at
Exhibit 1 and 2 are hereby adopted.

All previous versions of the amended portions of Elko City Master Plan, and all
resolutions or parts of resolutions in conflict herewith are hereby repealed.

An attested copy of the Elko Planning Commission’s report on the aforementioned
changes and additions to the Elko City Master Plan shall be filed with the Elko City
Council within forty (40) days of this Resolution.

The amendment to the Elko City Master Plan attached hereto at Exhibit 1 and 2, or any
portion thereof, shall be effective upon adoption by the Elko City Council.

PASSED AND ADOPTED this 2nd day of April 2019 by a vote of not less than two-
thirds of the membership of the Planning Commission per NRS 278.210 (3) and Elko
City Code Section 3-4-12 (B).

By:
Jeff Dalling, Chairman



Attest:
Tera Hooiman, Secretary

AYES:

NAYS:

ABSENT:

ABSTAIN:



 

claughlin
Cloud

claughlin
Cloud

claughlin
Callout
Remove the extension of El Armuth to the future I-80 frontage road

claughlin
Callout
Remove El Armuth from Sagecrest Drive to Celtic Way



__________________________________________________________________________ Transportation 

 

 Transportation page 8

 

� Country Club Drive 
� Court Street, Oak Street to 5th Street and 9th Street to 14th Street 
� Delaware Street, between Statice Street and Paradise Drive  
� El Armuth Drive (Mountain City Highway to Sagecrest Dr. & Celtic 

Way to Hondo Lane) 
� Enfield Avenue 
� Fairway Drive, between Skyline Drive and Keppler Drive 
� Forest Lane, between Montrose Lane and Enfield Avenue 
� Garcia Lane – South 11th Street 
� Highland Drive 
� Indian View Heights Drive 
� Jennings Way, south of Mountain City Highway 
� Keppler Drive  
� La Nae Drive, between Bluffs Avenue and Cottonwood Drive 
� Mittry Avenue (Chris Ave to College Parkway) 
� Montrose Lane 
� Opal Drive 
� Rocky Road (future) 
� Ruby View Drive 
� Sagecrest Drive 
� Sewell Drive 
� Spruce Road, between 5th Street and -Jennings Way 
� Stitzel Road, between Pinion Road and Liberty Drive 
� Sundance Drive 

 
 
Regional Roadways 
 
Regional Roadways are those collector or arterial streets 
characterized by moderate to high traffic volumes with significant 
traffic origins or traffic destinations outside of the corporate 
boundaries of the City of Elko. The following are considered 
Regional Roadways: 
 

� Jennings Way Loop 
� 5th Street 
� Ruby Vista Drive, east of Jennings Way 
� Delaware Street 
� Idaho Street 
� Silver Street  
� Manzanita Lane 
� 12th Street, south of Idaho Street 
� Last Chance Road 
� Bullion Road, west of Errecart Boulevard 
� Errecart Boulevard 
 
* Note that the Elko City Council approved the above list of Regional 
Roads; however, at this time Manzanita Lane and Last Chance Road are 
not recognized by the RTC as regional roads. 

Roadway Capacity 

Level of service (LOS) is a term used to measure and describe the 
operational conditions of a roadway network.  Letters A through F are 
used to measure the LOS of a roadway segment or intersection.  The 
following definitions are given for each level of service letter. 



Agenda Item # I.B.1. 

Created on 2/12/2018  Planning Commission Action Sheet 

Elko City Planning Commission 
Agenda Action Sheet 

 

1. Title: Review, consideration, and possible action to initiate an amendment to the 

City Zoning Ordinance, specifically Sections 3-2-3 General Provisions and 3-2-2 

Definitions, and matters related thereto. FOR POSSIBLE ACTION 

 

2. Meeting Date: May 7, 2019 

 

3. Agenda Category: MISCELLANEOUS ITEMS, PETITIONS, AND COMMUNICATIONS 

 

4. Time Required: 10 Minutes 

 

5. Background Information:  

 

6. Business Impact Statement: Not Required 

 

7. Supplemental Agenda Information: 

 

8. Recommended Motion: Move to initiate an amendment to the City Zoning 

Ordinance, specifically Sections 3-2-3 General Provisions and 3-2-2 Definitions and 

direct staff to bring the item back as a public hearing. 
 

9. Prepared By: Cathy Laughlin, City Planner 

 

10. Agenda Distribution:  





Page 1 of 20 Ord. 842 

CITY OF ELKO 

ORDINANCE NO. 842 

 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING TITLE 3, CHAPTER 2, SECTION 3 OF THE ELKO 

CITY CODE ENTITLED "GENERAL PROVISIONS" AND TITLE 3, CHAPTER 2, 

SECTION 2 OF THE ELKO CITY CODE ENTITLED “DEFINITIONS” HEREBY 

ADDING A REFERENCE TO CURB GUTTER AND SIDEWALK REQUIREMENTS 

SET FORTH IN TITLE 8 PUBLIC WAYS AND PROPERTY 

 

WHEREAS, the City of Elko desires to amend portions of the City Code pertaining to curb, 

gutter and sidewalks in order to further promote orderly growth and development, and to protect 

the interest, health, safety and general welfare of the public; and 

 

WHEREAS, the City of Elko has determined that the proposed amendments further those goals; 

and 

 

WHEREAS, the City of Elko desires to amend Title 3, Chapter 2, Section 3 of the Elko Code, 

and has followed all procedural requirements and legal noticing required per City Code and 

N.R.S. 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

ELKO, NEVADA 

 

For amendment purposes, words which are bold and underlined are additions to the Code 

and words which are bold and lined through are deletions from the Code. 

 

SECTION 1. Title 3, Chapter 2, Section 2 of the Elko City Code is hereby amended to read as 

follows:                           

 

3-2-2: DEFINITIONS:  

 

The following terms, whenever used in this chapter, shall have the meanings indicated. Words 

used in the present tense include the future tense; words in the singular include the plural, and 

vice versa. The word "shall" is always mandatory, and the word "may" is permissive. The word 

"persons" includes an association, firm, partnership or corporation, as well as an individual. The 

word "occupied" and the word "used" shall be considered as meaning the same as the words 

"intended", "arranged" or "designed to be used or occupied". The word "dwelling" includes the 

word "residence"; the word "lot" includes the words "plot" or "parcel". 

 

ABUTTING: The condition of two (2) adjoining properties having a common property line or 

boundary, including cases where two (2) or more lots adjoin only at a corner or corners, but not 

including cases where adjoining lots are separated by a street or alley. 

 

ADJOINING, ADJACENT: The condition of being near to or close to, but not necessarily having 

a common dividing line; e.g., two (2) properties which are separated only by a street or alley shall 

be considered as adjoining one another. 

 



Page 2 of 20 Ord. 842 

ADULT BOOKSTORE: For the purposes of this chapter, means an establishment which 

merchandises printed material or movies which are intended to appeal to the prurient interests of 

the reader. 

 

ADULT CARE FACILITY: An establishment that furnishes food, shelter, assistance and limited 

supervision only during the day to unrelated person(s) with an intellectual disability or with a 

physical disability who is aged or infirm. 

 

ADULT MOTION PICTURE THEATER: A motion picture theater whose program, during the 

time of its operation, contains one (1) or more motion pictures which are rated "X" by the code 

rating administration of the Motion Picture Association of America or are not rated, and whose 

program is intended to appeal to the prurient interests of the viewer. 

 

AGRICULTURE: The practice of cultivating the soil, producing crops and raising livestock. 

 

ALLEY: A passage or way, open to public travel and dedicated to public use, affording 

generally a secondary means of vehicular access to abutting lots and not intended for the 

general traffic circulation.  

A. A street or highway within a City block set apart for public use, vehicular 

traffic and local convenience; 

B. A street or highway which primarily furnishes access to the rear entrances of 

abutting property. 

AWNING: An architectural projection that provides weather protection, identity or decoration 

and is partially or wholly supported by the building to which it is attached. An awning is 

comprised of a lightweight frame structure over which a covering is attached. 

 

BUILDING: Any structure having a roof supported by columns or walls, and used for the 

support, shelter or enclosure of persons, animals, personal property or chattels of any kind. 

 

BUILDING, ACCESSORY: A subordinate building on the same lot with a principal building or 

use, the use of which is customarily accessory and incidental to the main use of the principal 

building or use. When attached to the principal building, such accessory building shall be 

considered a part of the principal building for purposes of setback and yard regulations. 

 

BUILDING HEIGHT: The vertical distance measured from grade to the highest point of the 

building. 

 

BUILDING INSPECTOR: Qualified employee of the City of Elko Building Department 

delegated to do building inspections and enforce applicable portions of this Code. 

 

BUILDING, PRINCIPAL: A building, or where the context so indicates, a group of buildings, 

within which is conducted the principal use of the lot on which the building is situated. 

 

CAMPING: The use of real property owned or occupied by another person for living 



Page 3 of 20 Ord. 842 

accommodation purposes outside of a structure that is affixed to the ground, to include uses such 

as, without limitation, the following when done in connection with outdoor living: a) overnight 

sleeping activities or making preparations to sleep overnight outside of a motor vehicle, 

recreational vehicle or trailer, such as the laying down of bedding on the ground for the purpose 

of sleeping overnight; b) storing personal belongings outside of a structure in connection with 

overnight sleeping activities; c) cooking outdoors or making a fire for the purpose of cooking 

food outdoors as approved by the City; or d) using any tent, shelter or other mobile structure for 

sleeping overnight. "Camping" does not include using a motor vehicle, recreational vehicle or 

trailer as long-term shelter, for living accommodation purposes or for the purpose of storage of 

belongings. 

 

CARPORT: An accessory building, attached or detached, having two (2) or more open sides, 

used by occupants of the principal building for automobile shelter or storage. 

 

CHILDCARE CENTER: A childcare facility providing care for more than twelve (12) children. 

 

CHILDCARE FACILITY: An establishment operated and maintained for the purpose of 

furnishing care on a temporary or permanent basis during the day or overnight, to five (5) or 

more children under eighteen (18) years of age, if compensation is received for the care of any of 

those children and provided that such establishment is licensed by the State and operated in 

accordance with State requirements. 

 

CHILDCARE FAMILY HOME: A childcare facility providing care for not less than five (5) 

children and not more than six (6) children. 

 

CHILDCARE GROUP HOME: A childcare facility providing care for not less than seven (7) 

children and not more than twelve (12) children. 

 

CLINIC: A building, or part thereof, in which ambulatory patients are provided diagnostic, 

therapeutic or preventative medical, surgical, dental or optical treatment by a group of doctors 

acting jointly, but not providing for overnight residence of patients. 

 

COMMON OPEN SPACE: A parcel or parcels of land, or an area of water, or a combination of 

land and water, within the site designated for planned unit residential development which is 

designed and intended for the use or enjoyment of the residents of the development. Common 

open space may contain such complementary structures and improvements as are necessary and 

appropriate for the benefit and enjoyment of such residents. 

 

CONDITIONAL USE: A use permitted in zoning district regulations subject to a finding by the 

Planning Commission that all special conditions and requirements imposed shall be met. 

 

CONSTRUCTION YARD: An area on, abutting or adjacent to a major construction or 

demolition site used on a temporary basis for the parking and storage of equipment used in the 

project, and the storage and preparation of materials and other items used in the project, 

including construction offices and shops. 

 

CONVALESCENT HOME: See definition of nursing or convalescent home. 



Page 4 of 20 Ord. 842 

 

DRIVE-IN ESTABLISHMENT: A business enterprise, activity or use of land consisting of sales 

or services rendered to patrons who normally receive the products or utilize the services while in 

motor vehicles upon the premises, including, but not limited to, gas service stations, drive-in 

restaurants, drive-in laundry and dry cleaning pick up, and drive-in bank. 

 

DWELLING, MULTIPLE-FAMILY: A building, or portion thereof, containing two (2) or more 

dwelling units. 

 

DWELLING, SINGLE-FAMILY: A building containing only one (1) dwelling unit and which is 

constructed under the Building Code in accordance with title 2 of this Code, and which also 

includes manufactured homes developed to specific standards in accordance with subsection 3-2-

3Q of this chapter. 

 

DWELLING UNIT (DU): A single unit providing complete, independent living facilities for one 

(1) family, including permanent provisions for living, sleeping, eating, cooking and sanitation. 

 

ERECTED: Built, constructed, altered, reconstructed or moved upon; any physical operations on 

a premises which are required for construction, excavation, fill, drainage and the like, shall be 

considered a part of erection. 

 

ESSENTIAL SERVICE: The erection, construction, alteration or maintenance by a public utility 

of underground, surface or overhead gas, electrical, steam, water transmission or distribution 

systems, communication, supply or disposal systems, poles, wires, mains, drains, sewers, pipes, 

cables, fire alarm boxes, police call boxes, traffic signals, hydrants, and other similar equipment 

and accessories in connection therewith reasonably necessary for the furnishing of adequate 

service by such public utilities for the public health, safety or general welfare, not including 

buildings, electric substations and transmission towers. 

 

EXCAVATION: Any breaking of ground, except common gardening and grounds care, and 

general agriculture. 

 

FAMILY: An individual living alone; or, one (1) or more persons living together who are related 

by blood, marriage or other legal bond, and their dependents; or, a group of not more than five 

(5) unrelated persons living together as a single household in a dwelling unit. A "family" includes 

its domestic employees. 

 

FULL FRONTAGE: All lot lines of any lot, parcel or tract of property adjacent to a road, street, 

alley or right-of-way, to include lots, parcels or tracts containing multiple borders or edges, such 

as corner lots. 

 

GAS SERVICE STATION: An establishment retailing motor fuels and lubricants directly to the 

public on the premises, including incidental sale of minor auto accessories and services. 

 

GRADE: The average elevation of the finished ground surface adjacent to the exterior walls of a 

building or base of a structure. 

 



Page 5 of 20 Ord. 842 

HALFWAY HOUSE FOR RECOVERING ALCOHOL AND DRUG ABUSERS: A residence 

that provides housing and a living environment for recovering alcohol and drug abusers and is 

operated to facilitate their reintegration into the community, but does not provide treatment for 

alcohol or drug abuse. The term "halfway house for recovering alcohol and drug abusers" does 

not include a facility for transitional living for released offenders. 

 

HOME OCCUPATION: A business customarily carried on in a business establishment that is 

permitted to be carried out in a residence as long as the use as a business is incidental to the 

primary residential purpose and the residential character of the property is not changed. Every 

person permitted to carry on a home occupation shall obtain an annual business license. 

 

HOSPITAL: A building, or group of buildings, in which sick or injured persons are given 

medical or surgical treatment, examination or care, including overnight residence, together with 

related facilities, e.g., laboratories, training facilities, staff residences, outpatient department and 

similar facilities which are an integral part of the principal use. 

 

HOTEL, MOTEL: A building, or group of buildings, used primarily for accommodation of 

transient guests in rooms or suites. 

 

HUMANITARIAN CAMPGROUND: A designated area that serves a humanitarian purpose by 

allowing people, with permission from the owner or occupier of the land, to engage in camping 

and that may or may not have toilets, showers and/or other amenities for campers to use. 

 

HUMANITARIAN PURPOSE: A use which is not for profit and which is designed to allow 

people who are homeless or who cannot occupy their homes due to lack of utilities or other 

causes, to engage in life sustaining activities, such as eating and sleeping. 

 

JUNKYARD: An open area where waste, used or secondhand materials are bought and sold, 

exchanged, stored, baled, packed, disassembled or handled, including, but not limited to, scrap 

iron and other metals, paper, rags, rubber tires, and bottles. A "junkyard" includes automobile 

wrecking yards and any area of more than one hundred twenty (120) square feet for storage, 

keeping or abandonment of junk, but does not include uses confined entirely within enclosed 

buildings. 

 

LANDOWNER: The legal or beneficial owner or owners of all the land proposed to be included 

in the planned unit development. The holder of an option or contract of purchase, and lessee 

having a remaining term of not less than thirty (30) years, or another person having an 

enforceable proprietary interest in such land, is a "landowner" for the purposes of this chapter. 

 

LICENSED HOUSE OF PROSTITUTION: A licensed commercial enterprise maintained for the 

convenience and resort of persons desiring lawful sexual intercourse. 

 

LOADING SPACE: An off street space provided for the temporary parking of a vehicle while 

loading or unloading merchandise or materials, situated on the same lot with a building and 

entirely outside the right-of-way of any public street or alley. 

 

LOT: A distinct part or parcel of land separated from other pieces or parcels by description, 



Page 6 of 20 Ord. 842 

identified as such in a subdivision or on a record survey map, or described as such by metes and 

bounds, with the intention or for the purposes of sale, lease, or separate use, or for the purpose of 

building, including the following types of lots: 

Corner Lot: A lot abutting two (2) or more intersecting streets. 

 

Double Frontage Lot: A lot abutting two (2) parallel or approximately parallel streets. 

 

Interior Lot: A lot having only one (1) side abutting a street. 

 

Key Lot: An interior lot, one (1) side of which is contiguous to the rear line of a corner lot. 

LOT AREA: The total area of a lot within the lot lines as measured on a horizontal plane. 

 

LOT COVERAGE: That part or percentage of a lot occupied by principal and/or accessory 

buildings. 

 

LOT DEPTH: The shortest distance, measured on a line parallel to the axis of the lot, between 

points on the front and rear lot lines. 

 

LOT LINE: A line bounding a lot, including the following types of lot lines: 

A. Front Lot Line: The lot line coinciding with the street line; or, in the case of a corner lot, 

the shorter of two (2) lot lines coinciding with street lines; or, in the case of a double 

frontage lot, both lot lines coinciding with street lines. 

B. Rear Lot Line: The lot line opposite and farthest from the front lot line; for a pointed or 

irregular lot, the rear lot line shall be an imaginary line, parallel to and farthest from the 

front lot line, not less than ten feet (10') long and wholly within the lot. 

C. Side Lot Line: Any lot line other than a front or rear lot line; in the case of a corner lot, 

the lot line abutting the side street is designated as the exterior side lot line and all other 

side lot lines are designated as interior side lot lines. 

LOT OF RECORD: A lot which is part of a subdivision plat or other type of map used for the 

purpose of dividing or merging parcels of land, recorded in the Elko County Recorder's Office 

prior to the effective date hereof; or, a lot or parcel described by metes and bounds and having its 

description recorded in the Elko County Recorder's Office prior to the effective date hereof. 

 

LOT WIDTH:  

A. In case of a rectangular lot or a lot abutting on the outside of a street curve, the distance 

between side lot lines measured parallel to the street or to the street chord and measured 

on the street chord. 



Page 7 of 20 Ord. 842 

B. In the case of a lot abutting on the inside of a street curve, the distance between the side lot 

lines measured parallel to the street or the street chord at the rear line of the dwelling, or, 

where there is no dwelling, thirty feet (30') behind the minimum front setback line. 

MAJOR ELECTRICAL TRANSMISSION LINE: Any electrical line carrying an electrical load 

of sixty six (66) kV and above. 

 

METALLURGY: The reduction or extraction of metals from their ores by mechanical, physical 

or chemical methods, including their refinement and preparation for use as raw materials. 

 

MINING: The extraction from the earth of gravel, stone, sand, and metallic or nonmetallic ore, 

and the crushing, washing, grading, storage and loading for transportation thereof. 

 

MIXED USE: Combination of different uses including residential use within a shared building. 

 

MOBILE HOME: As defined in the City of Elko mobile home ordinance1. 

 

MOBILE HOME LOT: As defined in the City of Elko mobile home ordinance2. 

 

MOBILE HOME PARK: As defined in the City of Elko mobile home ordinance3. 

 

NONCONFORMING USE: Uses existing at the time of adoption of this chapter, but not in 

accordance with the provisions and requirements contained herein. 

 

NURSING OR CONVALESCENT HOME: An establishment providing bed care, or chronic or 

convalescent care, for one (1) or more persons, exclusive of relatives, who by reason of illness or 

physical infirmity are unable to properly care for themselves; excluding, however, institutions for 

the care of alcoholics, drug addicts, and persons with mental or communicable diseases. 

 

OFF STREET: Land which is not within the right-of-way of any street or alley. 

 

PARK AND RIDE FACILITIES: Parking lots which are intended to allow commuters to park 

their vehicles and then transfer to some form of mass transportation, such as buses, trains or 

carpools. 

 

PARKING LOT: An area other than for single-family dwellings used for the off street parking of 

more than two (2) motor vehicles, including parking spaces, access and maneuvering aisles. 

 

PARKING SPACE: A fully accessible space adequate for the temporary parking of permitted 

vehicles, situated entirely outside the right-of-way of any public street. 

 

PARTIES IN INTEREST: A term identifying the owners of property within three hundred feet 

(300') of specific property. 

 

PERSON: Except where otherwise indicated, a natural person, any form of business or social 

organization and any other nongovernmental legal entity including, but not limited to, a 

corporation, partnership, association, trust or unincorporated organization, or a government, 



Page 8 of 20 Ord. 842 

governmental agency or political subdivision of a government. 

 

PLANNED SHOPPING CENTER: A business development not divided by a street and 

characterized by an organized and concentrated grouping of retail and service outlets served by a 

common circulation and parking system. 

 

PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT: An area of land controlled by a landowner, which is to be 

developed as a single entity for a number of dwelling units, the plans for which do not 

correspond in lot size, bulk or type of dwelling, density, lot coverage and required open space to 

the regulations established in any one (1) residential district created, from time to time, under the 

provisions of this chapter. 

 

PLANNING COMMISSION: The City of Elko Planning Commission. 

 

PRIVATE GARAGES: An enclosed accessory building, attached or detached, used for storage of 

motor vehicles used by occupants of the principal building and providing no public shop or 

services in connection therewith. 

PUBLIC IMPROVEMENT: Street work, utilities and other improvements to be installed 

on land dedicated or to be dedicated for streets and easements as are necessary for local 

drainage, local traffic and the general use of property owners in the subdivision. 

 

PUBLIC UTILITY: Any person, firm, corporation, municipality or Municipal board duly 

authorized under State or Municipal regulations, to furnish to the public electricity, gas, steam, 

communications, water, drainage, flood control, irrigation, garbage or trash disposal, or sewage 

disposal. 

 

RAILROAD USE: The occupation and use of land, buildings and structures for purposes directly 

connected with rail transportation of articles, goods and passengers, including such facilities as 

tracks, sidings, signal devices and structures, shops and yards for maintenance and storage of rail 

machinery, loading platforms, passenger and freight terminals, but excluding warehouses, 

stockyards, grain elevators, truck freight terminals and yards, and similar facilities, which are 

maintained and operated by the owning railroad company or by a lessee for purposes auxiliary to 

rail transportation. 

 

RECREATION AND SOCIAL CLUBS: Buildings and grounds used for and operated by 

membership of fraternal organizations primarily not for profit, including golf clubs, tennis clubs, 

riding clubs, American Legion halls, Elks Club, and similar facilities. 

 

RECREATIONAL VEHICLE: A vehicle self-propelled or otherwise, designed to temporarily 

shelter persons en route on a recreational or vacation trip. "Recreational vehicle" includes truck 

mounted campers, and self-propelled travel vans. 

 

RECREATIONAL VEHICLE PARK: A lot, parcel or tract of land, having as its principal use the 

rental of space of temporary short term, transient occupancy by two (2) or more recreational 

vehicles, including any accessory buildings, structures and uses customarily incidental thereto. 

 



Page 9 of 20 Ord. 842 

REPAIR GARAGE: An establishment where these services may be allowed: normal activities of 

a gas service station, general repair, engine rebuilding, rebuilding or reconditioning of motor 

vehicles; collision services such as body, frame or fender straightening and repair; general 

painting and undercoating of automobiles; high speed washing; auto, boat or trailer rental; and 

general sales of auto parts or accessories. 

 

RESIDENTIAL ESTABLISHMENT: A halfway house for recovering alcohol and drug abusers 

or a residential facility for groups. 

 

RESIDENTIAL FACILITY FOR GROUPS: An establishment that furnishes food, shelter, 

assistance and limited supervision to unrelated person(s) with an intellectual disability or with a 

physical disability who is aged or infirm. The term does not include an establishment which 

provides care only during the day, a natural person who provides care for no more than two (2) 

persons in his own home, a natural person who provides care for one (1) or more persons related 

to him within the third degree of consanguinity or affinity, a halfway house for recovering 

alcohol and drug abusers, or a facility funded by a division or program of the Nevada Department 

of Health and Human Services. 

 

RETAIL USE: A commercial establishment selling goods at retail; however, a home occupation 

shall not be considered as a retail use. 

RIGHTS-OF-WAY: All public and private rights-of-way and all areas required for 

public use in accordance with any master plan or parts thereof. 

 

ROADWAY CLASSIFICATION: All roadway classifications shall be determined in accordance 

with the Transportation Component of the City of Elko Master Plan. 

 

ROOMING HOUSE: A building other than a hotel or motel where, for compensation and by 

prearrangement for definite periods of time, lodging is provided for individuals who are not 

members of a resident family. 

 

SCHOOL: A public or private building, or group of buildings, used for purposes of primary or 

secondary education, meeting all requirements of the Compulsory Education Laws of the State of 

Nevada. 

 

SCREEN WALL: A masonry wall or opaque fence so constructed as to prevent the view of 

enclosed activities or uses from without. 

 

SERVANT QUARTERS: An attached or detached building, or part thereof, housing persons 

employed on the premises. 

 

SERVICE CLUBS: Buildings and grounds used for and operated by nonprofit organizations 

whose membership is open to any resident of the community, including YMCA, YWCA, Boy 

Scouts, Girl Scouts, Boys Club and any similar organizations having as its primary objective the 

improvement of the district, neighborhood or community and its social welfare. 

 



Page 10 of 20 Ord. 842 

SETBACK: The minimum horizontal distance between a lot line and the nearest point of a 

building, structure or use, as the context indicates, located on a lot. "Setback" shall not include 

eaves of the building. 

 

STORY: That portion of a building included between the surface of any floor and the surface of 

the next floor above, or if there is no floor above, the space between the topmost floor and the 

roof having a usable floor area at least one-half (1/2) that of the floor area of the floor 

immediately below. A basement shall be considered a story when fifty percent (50%) or more of 

its cubic content is above grade. 

 

STREET: Any existing or proposed street, avenue, boulevard, road, lane, parkway, place, 

bridge, viaduct or easement for public vehicular access; or, a street shown in a map 

heretofore approved pursuant to law; or, a street in a map duly filed and recorded in the 

county recorder's office. A street includes all land within the street right of way, whether 

improved or unimproved, and includes such improvements as pavement, shoulder, curbs, 

gutters, sidewalks, parking space, bridges, viaducts, lawns and trees.  For purposes of this 

Chapter, the following definitions apply to specific types of streets: 

A. Alley: A public way providing secondary vehicular access and service to properties 

which also abut a street. 

B. Arterial And Minor Arterial Streets: A general term describing large major streets, 

including freeways, expressways and interstate roadways, and state and/or county 

highways having city and regional continuity. 

C. Collector Residential And Local Residential Streets: City streets serving the 

primary function of providing access to abutting property: 

1. Cul-De-Sac Street: A short collector residential and local residential street 

having one end permanently terminating in and including a vehicular turning 

area. 

2. Marginal Access Street: A collector residential and local residential street 

parallel to and abutting an arterial street which provides access to abutting 

property, intercepts other collector residential and local residential streets, and 

controls access to the arterial street. 

D. Collector Street: A street generally with limited continuity serving the primary 

function of moving traffic between arterial streets and local residential streets, and 

the secondary function of providing access to abutting properties. 

A dedicated public way which affords the principal means of vehicular access to abutting 

property. 

 

STREET LINE: A line demarcating the limits of a street right-of-way. 

 

STREET, PRIVATE: A nondedicated, privately owned right-of-way or limited public way that 

affords the principal means of emergency and limited vehicular access and connection from the 



Page 11 of 20 Ord. 842 

public street system to properties created through the division or subdivision of land. 

 

STREET, PUBLIC: A dedicated public right-of-way that is part of the public street system and 

which affords the principal means of emergency and general vehicular access to abutting 

property. 

 

STRUCTURE: Any constructed or erected material or combination of materials, the use of 

which requires location on the ground or attachment to something located on the ground and 

which requires a permit as defined and regulated by the Building Code, including buildings, 

stadiums, radio towers, sheds, storage bins, fences and signs. 

 

SWIMMING POOL: Any constructed pool, used for swimming, bathing or wading, whether 

above or below the ground surface and regardless of depth or water surface area. 

 

TEMPORARY USE OR BUILDING: A use or structure permitted under the terms of this 

chapter to exist for a limited period of time. 

 

TOWNHOUSE OR ROW HOUSE: A single-dwelling unit arranged side by side with other such 

units in a multi-family dwelling, completely independent of all other such units in the building by 

reason of separation therefrom by unpierced party walls. 

 

USABLE FLOOR AREA: A term used in computing parking requirements, meaning the 

aggregate area of a building measured to the interior area, similarly measured, or each additional 

story which is connected to the first story by a fixed stairway, escalator, ramp or elevator, and the 

floor area of all accessory buildings, measured similarly, but excluding that part of any floor area 

which is occupied by heating, ventilating, or other permanently installed equipment required for 

operation of the building, and by unenclosed porches, light shafts, public corridors and public 

toilets. For uses not enclosed within a building, the area for sales, display or service shall be 

measured to determine equivalent usable floor area. 

 

USE: The purpose for which land or a building is arranged, designed or intended, or for which 

land or a building is or may be occupied. The principal use is the main use to which the premises 

are devoted and the main purpose for which the premises exist. An accessory use is a use 

subordinate to the principal use on a lot and used for purposes clearly incidental to those of the 

principal use. 

 

VARIANCE: A modification of the literal enforcement of the technical provisions and 

requirements of this chapter. The applicant for variance shall present adequate evidence to 

support the granting of a variance in accordance with section 3-2-22 of this chapter. 

 

YARD: An open space located between any portion of a building and the nearest lot line, or the 

nearest adjacent building or group of buildings, as the context indicates, unoccupied and 

unobstructed from the ground upward, except as otherwise provided in this chapter. 

 

YARD, FRONT: A yard extending across the full width of the lot and having a depth equal to the 

horizontal distance between the nearest point of the principal building and the front lot line, 

measured at right angles to the front lot line. 



Page 12 of 20 Ord. 842 

 

YARD, NONREQUIRED: Any yard with dimensions exceeding those required herein. 

 

YARD, REAR: A yard extending across the full width of a lot and having a depth equal to the 

horizontal distance between the nearest point of the principal building and the rear lot line, 

measured at right angles to the rear lot line. 

 

YARD, REQUIRED: A yard having the minimum dimensions required herein. 

 

YARD, SIDE: A yard extending from the front lot line to the rear lot line between a side lot line 

and the principal building, and having a width equal to the horizontal distance between the 

nearest point of the principal building and the side lot line, measured at right angles to the side 

lot line. (Ord. 818, 4-25-2017)  

SECTION 2. Title 3, Chapter 2, Section 3 of the Elko City Code is hereby amended to read as 

follows:                           

 

3-2-3: GENERAL PROVISIONS: 

 

A. Interpretation: In their interpretation and application, the provisions of this chapter shall 

be held to be minimum requirements, shall be liberally construed in favor of the city, and 

shall not be deemed a limitation or repeal of any other power granted by the Nevada 

Revised Statutes. 

 

B. Street, And Utility and Other Public Improvement Requirements: The following 

restrictions shall apply: 

 

1. Generally, all lots shall abut and access a public street connecting with the public 

street system in order to provide for orderly growth, vehicular circulation and to ensure 

accessibility to utilities and emergency services. A condominium or townhome project 

shall be considered one lot for purposes of this specific requirement. 

 

2. Lots may abut and access a private street connecting with the public street system in 

the following circumstances: 

 

 

a. Within a PC (planned commercial) district in conformance with an approved 

concept development plan. 

 

b. Within an IBP (industrial business park) district in conformance with an approved 

concept development plan. 

 

c. Within a PUD (planned unit development) district in conformance with an 

approved site development plan. 

 

d. Within an RMH (residential mobile home) district in conformance with an 

approved site development plan. 



Page 13 of 20 Ord. 842 

 

e. For residential, commercial or industrial developments involving four (4) or fewer 

lots and where the length of the private street, from the nearest public street to the 

lot being accessed, does not exceed six hundred eighty feet (680'). 

 

3. Building permits may be issued for lots which abut undedicated portions of a partly 

dedicated public street. 

 

4. A building permit shall not be issued for any lot for which city public sewerage and 

water supply is not available, unless the city council grants a waiver of the mandatory 

connection to public sewer requirement pursuant to subsection 9-5-61B of this code. 

 

5. All utilities shall be placed underground, except for lots of record. 

 

6. Public street and utility construction and installation is required across the full 

frontage of property at time of development. 

 

7. Developed lots or parcels of land involving a change in building occupancy, 

change in use of land, or upon which any building is expanded upon or new 

construction shall be subject to curb, gutter and sidewalk provisions set forth in 

Elko City Code 8-21-3. 

 

C. Use Restrictions: The following use restrictions shall apply: 

 

1. Principal Uses: Only those uses and groups of uses specifically designated as 

"principal uses permitted" in zoning district regulations shall be permitted as principal 

uses; all other uses shall be prohibited as principal uses. 

 

2. Conditional Uses: Certain specified uses designated as "conditional uses permitted" 

may be permitted as principal uses subject to special conditions of location, design, 

construction, operation and maintenance hereinafter specified in this chapter or 

imposed by the planning commission or city council. 

 

3. Accessory Uses: Uses normally accessory and incidental to permitted principal or 

conditional uses may be permitted as hereinafter specified. 

 

4. Unspecified Uses: The listing of groups of permitted uses is intended to establish the 

character of uses to be permitted, but not to include each and every use which may be 

permitted. Unspecified uses may be imposed by the planning commission upon 

evidence and determination that such uses are closely similar in character to and not 

typically more objectionable than other uses actually listed as permitted. 

 

5. Temporary Uses: Certain temporary uses such as interim administrative and sales 

offices, sales offices for mobile and manufactured homes, model home sales complex 

for residential subdivisions, materials storage, mixing, assembly, manufacturing of a 

portable nature and similar uses determined to be functionally comparable, and, as 

specified in this paragraph, temporary emergency shelters, temporary camping and 



Page 14 of 20 Ord. 842 

temporary campgrounds may be permitted by temporary use permit. 

 

a. “Temporary emergency shelters” are defined as enclosed and unenclosed 

locations, to include structures and portions of structures, used for temporary 

occupancy by individuals and families who are homeless or who cannot 

occupy their homes due to lack of utilities or other causes. Temporary 

emergency shelters may be permitted, but only within C (General 

Commercial), LI (Light Industrial) and GI (General Industrial) Zoning 

Districts. 

 

b. “Temporary Camping” means to use real property owned or occupied by 

another person for living accommodation purposes for a limited period of 

time outside of a structure that is affixed to the ground, to include uses such 

as, without limitation, the following when done in connection with outdoor 

living: (1) overnight sleeping activities or making preparations to sleep 

overnight outside of a motor vehicle, recreational vehicle or trailer, such as 

the laying down of bedding on the ground for the purpose of sleeping 

overnight; (2) storing personal belongings outside of a structure in connection 

with overnight sleeping activities; (3) cooking outdoors or making a fire for 

the purpose of cooking food outdoors as approved by the city in the 

temporary use permit; or (4) using any tent, shelter or other mobile structure 

for sleeping overnight. “Camping” does not include using a motor vehicle, 

recreational vehicle or trailer as long-term shelter, for living accommodation 

purposes, or for the purpose of storage of belongings. 

 

c. “Temporary Campground” means a designated area where people may, with 

permission from the owner or occupier of the land, engage in camping for a 

limited period of time and that may or may not have toilets, showers and/or 

other amenities for campers to use. 

 

d. Temporary Camping and Temporary Campgrounds may be permitted as 

temporary uses, but only within LI (Light Industrial) and GI (General 

Industrial) Zoning Districts. 

 

e. For purposes of this section, “overnight” is defined as the period from one-

half hour after sunset to sunrise. 

 

f. For purposes of this section, “living accommodation purposes” is defined as 

uses and activities needed for or directly connected with the use of land for 

engaging in life-sustaining activities. 

 

g. The temporary use permit process for camping and campgrounds shall be 

subject to the following public hearing process: the city shall set a time and 

place for the public hearing before the planning commission on the 

application and the city shall send, by mail, notice of the time and place and 

purpose of the planning commission hearing, at least ten (10) days before the 

hearing, to the owners of property within three hundred feet (300') of the 



Page 15 of 20 Ord. 842 

exterior limits of the property involved, as shown by the latest assessment 

rolls of the city. Notice by mail to the last known address of the real property 

owners, as shown by the Assessor's records, shall be sufficient. Legal notice 

shall be placed in a newspaper of general circulation within the city at least 

ten (10) days prior to the date of the public hearing. Applications for 

temporary use permits must be filed at least twenty-one (21) days before the 

planning commission hearing. 

 

h. Temporary use permits may be subject to such special conditions as may be 

imposed by the planning commission related to time frame, location, nature 

and character of the use and extent of on site improvements. Application for a 

temporary use permit shall be filed with the planning department on a form 

provided for such purpose and shall include payment of a filing fee in an 

amount established by resolution of the city council. 

 

6. Site Plan Review: Certain uses, structures, activities or uses requiring planning 

commission review or determination, inclusive of public buildings, public structures 

or other public developments such as parks, except those submitted as part of an 

application for a conditional use permit or temporary use permit, may be permitted 

upon formal review by the planning commission. The scope of the planning 

commission's review shall be limited to location, character and extent of 

improvements thereof, and shall be subject to such special conditions, relative to the 

defined scope of review, as may be imposed by the planning commission. Application 

for site plan review shall be filed with the planning department on a form provided for 

such purpose and shall include payment of a filing fee in an amount established by 

resolution of the city council. 

 

D. Site Unsuitability: No land may be used or structure erected where the land is held by the 

planning commission to be unsuitable for such use or structure by reason of flooding, 

concentrated runoff, inadequate drainage, adverse soil or rock formation, extreme 

topography, low bearing strength, erosion susceptibility, or any other features likely to be 

harmful to the health, safety and general welfare of the community. The planning 

commission, in applying the provisions of this section, shall state in writing the particular 

facts upon which its conclusions are based. The applicant shall have the right to present 

evidence contesting such determination to the city council if he or she so desires, 

whereupon the city council may affirm, modify or withdraw the determination of 

unsuitability. 

 

E. Reduction Or Joint Use: No lot, yard, parking or loading area, building area, or other 

space, nor any part thereof, hereinafter required about or in connection with any building, 

shall be included as part of a yard area or space required for any other building, nor shall 

any yard or lot existing on the effective date hereof be reduced in dimension or area 

below the minimum requirements set forth in this title. 

 

F. Building Height Regulations: No building shall exceed the heights allowed in the current 

city of Elko airport master plan. 

 



Page 16 of 20 Ord. 842 

G. Projections Into Required Yards; Residential Districts: 

 

1. Awnings, open fire balconies, fire escape stairs, window type refrigeration units not 

exceeding one and one-half (11/2) tons or one and one-half (11/2) horsepower rating, 

suspended or roof evaporative coolers, and forced air furnaces, may project not more 

than five feet (5') over any required yard; provided, that they shall be no closer than 

two feet (2') to any lot line. 

 

2. Cornices and eaves may project over any required yard, provided, that they shall be no 

closer than two feet (2') to any lot line. 

 

3. Sills, belt courses and similar ornamental features may project not more than six 

inches (6") over or into any required yard. 

 

4. Unroofed terraces, patios, steps or similar features may project into any required yard; 

provided, that projections into required front yards shall not exceed ten feet (10'). 

Roofed or covered terraces, patios, steps or similar features may project into the 

required rear yard no closer than ten feet (10') to the rear lot line, provided two (2) 

sides of the covered feature remain open. 

 

5. Fireplaces may be allowed to encroach into required yards no closer than two feet (2') 

to any lot line. 

 

6. Carports may be allowed to encroach into required side yards; provided, that two (2) 

sides of the carport remain open, that no portion of the carport structure be closer than 

three feet (3') to any side lot line, and all drainage from the roof of the structure shall 

be onto the property itself. 

 

H. Exterior Lighting: All lighting for advertising off street parking or loading areas, or for 

the external illumination of buildings, shall be directed away from and shielded from any 

adjacent residential district and shall not detract from driver visibility on adjacent streets 

or highways, interfere with or cause driver confusion regarding traffic control devices, 

interfere with driver vision or create other traffic hazards. 

 

I. Essential Services Permitted: Nothing in this chapter shall prevent the location, erection, 

construction, alteration or maintenance by a public utility of any "essential services", as 

herein defined. 

 

J. Required Screen Walls: Under certain conditions, the planning commission may 

recommend that the city council require screen walls to separate incompatible uses; e.g., 

separation of abutting or industrial uses and residential uses. Such wall shall be 

constructed by the developer and approved by the city engineer or planning commission. 

 

K. Nonrequired Fences, Walls And Hedges: 

 

1. No fence, wall, tree, shrub or hedge may be allowed which would obstruct vision at 

street intersections in any residential district. 



Page 17 of 20 Ord. 842 

 

2. No fence or wall shall contain barbed wire, concertina razor wire, electrical current or 

charge of electricity, broken glass, or similar hazardous materials or devices; 

provided, however, that fences enclosing storage areas in industrial or commercial 

districts may use barbed wire extension arms on chainlink fences six feet (6') or 

higher, or may use concertina razor wire extension arms on chainlink fences seven 

feet (7') or higher. In addition, fences enclosing storage areas in industrial or 

commercial districts may use concertina razor wire extension arms on chainlink 

fences between six feet (6') and seven feet (7') in height so long as the concertina 

razor wire extension arm does not protrude more than six inches (6") out from the 

exterior vertical extension of the chainlink fence. 

 

3. No nonbuilding wall or fence in any residential district shall exceed six feet (6') in 

height without a building permit. 

 

L. Trash Enclosures: A permanent enclosure for temporary storage of garbage, refuse and 

other waste materials shall be provided for every use other than single-family dwellings in 

every zoning district, except where an approved mechanically loaded steel bin is used for 

the purpose, or where a property is entirely surrounded by screen walls or buildings. 

Trash enclosures shall be so constructed that contents are not visible from a height of five 

feet (5') above grade on any abutting street or property. 

 

M. Swimming Pools: Swimming pools, whether private, public or commercial, shall comply 

with the laws, rules and regulations of the city and state. 

 

N. Signs: The provisions of the sign code as set forth in chapter 9 of this title shall apply. 

 

O. Building And Electrical Codes: In all construction hereafter made within the city, the 

same shall be in accordance with title 2, chapters 2 and 6 of this code, and all other 

applicable provisions of this code. 

 

P. Mobile Homes: Mobile homes are hereby expressly prohibited for living purposes outside 

the RMH district, except as stated in other chapters of this title. All requirements of 

chapter 5 of this title and all other applicable provisions of this code shall be adhered to 

with respect to standards for the RMH district. 

 

Q. Manufactured Homes: Notwithstanding any other provisions in this code, manufactured 

homes are hereby recognized as a "principal permitted use" in all zoning districts which 

recognize single-family dwellings as a "principal permitted use", provided all of the 

following standards are complied with: 

 

1. The manufactured home shall be placed on a foundation permanently affixed to the 

residential lot and qualify and constitute real property, as established by Nevada 

Revised Statutes chapter 361. 

 

2. The manufactured home shall be manufactured within the five (5) years immediately 

preceding the date on which it is affixed to the residential lot. 



Page 18 of 20 Ord. 842 

 

3. The manufactured home shall utilize exterior siding consisting of or giving the 

appearance of stucco, masonry, wood, metal or vinyl and affixed to the dwelling unit 

in a continuous horizontal or vertical pattern similar in color, material and appearance 

to the exterior siding used on other single-family dwellings in the immediate vicinity. 

 

4. The manufactured home shall utilize roofing materials consisting of asphalt shingles 

or equivalent roofing materials of comparable quality, similar in color, material and 

appearance to the roofing used on other single-family dwellings in the immediate 

vicinity. The manufactured home shall utilize a full height roof element with a 

minimum pitch of three to twelve (3:12). The roof element shall include a minimum 

overhang or projecting eave of twelve inches (12"). 

 

5. The manufactured home shall be multisectioned (doublewide or larger) with a 

minimum width or minimum depth of twenty four feet (24'). 

 

6. The manufactured home shall consist of at least one thousand two hundred (1,200) 

square feet of living area. A waiver can be filed and may be granted for a reduction of 

the living area based on the size or configuration of the lot or the square footage of 

single-family residential dwellings in the immediate vicinity, in accordance with site 

plan review procedures pursuant to subsection C6 of this section. 

 

7. Any elevated foundations shall be masked architecturally in a manner to blend and 

harmonize with exterior siding materials utilized on the manufactured home. 

 

8. As provided in Nevada Revised Statutes, the provisions of this section do not 

abrogate recorded restrictive covenants prohibiting manufactured homes, nor do the 

provisions apply within the boundaries of a historic district established pursuant to 

Nevada Revised Statutes section 384.005 or 384.100. An application to place a 

manufactured home on a residential lot pursuant to this section constitutes an 

attestation by the owner of the lot that the placement complies with all covenants, 

conditions and restrictions placed on the lot and that the lot is not located within a 

historic district. 

 

R. Minimum Distance Between Residential Establishments: A minimum distance of at least 

one thousand three hundred twenty feet (1,320') shall be required between residential 

establishments. A residential establishment is defined in Nevada Revised Statutes section 

278.02384 as: 

 

"Residential establishment means (1) a home for individual residential care in a 

community whose population is 100,000 or more, (2) a halfway house for recovering 

alcohol and drug abusers or (3) a residential facility for groups". 

 

1. The definition of "individual residential care" is not applicable as the population of 

Elko County is less than one hundred thousand (100,000). 

 

2. "Halfway house for recovering alcohol and drug abusers" is defined in Nevada 



Page 19 of 20 Ord. 842 

Revised Statutes section 449.008 as: 

 

"Halfway house for recovering alcohol and drug abusers means a residence that 

provides housing and a living environment for alcohol and drug abusers and is 

operated to facilitate their reintegration into the community, but does not provide 

treatment for alcohol or drug abuse. The term does not include a facility for the 

treatment of abuse of alcohol or drugs as defined in Nevada Revised Statutes section 

449.00455". 

 

3. "Residential facility for groups" is defined in Nevada Revised Statutes section 

449.017 as: 

 

"Except as otherwise provided in subsection 2, residential facility for groups means 

an establishment that furnishes food, shelter assistance and limited supervision to an 

aged, infirm, mentally retarded or handicapped person. The term does include: 

 

a. An establishment which provides care only during the day; 

 

b. A natural person who provides care for no more than two (2) persons in his own 

home; 

 

c. A natural person who provides care for one or more persons related to him within 

the third degree of consanguinity or affinity; 

 

d. A halfway house for alcohol and drug abusers; or 

e. A facility funded by a division or program of the department of human resources." 

 

S. As Built Drawing: Except for the new construction of a single-family dwelling, prior to 

the issuance of a certificate of occupancy for any new construction, the applicant must 

submit to the city a complete and accurate as built drawing with survey data on the Elko 

grid (NAD 83 Nevada east zone ground elevation). The as built drawing must be 

submitted electronically in AutoCAD format and must be accompanied by a wet stamped 

and signed paper copy by the professional of record for the project. As used herein, the 

term "as built drawing" means a drawing that accurately depicts the locations of all 

improvements on the parcel or lot containing the new construction and any associated 

utilities or other public improvements constructed on other properties, which drawing 

shall, without limitation, include the structure(s) and all associated utilities and other 

public improvements. 

 

SECTION 3.  All ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict herewith are hereby repealed, but 

only to the extent of such conflict. 

 

SECTION 4.  If any section, paragraph, clause or provision of this Ordinance shall for any 

reason be held to be invalid, unenforceable or unconstitutional by any court of competent 

jurisdiction, the invalidity, unenforceability of such section, paragraph, clause or provision shall 

not affect any remaining provision of this Ordinance. 

 



Page 20 of 20 Ord. 842 

SECTION 5.  Upon adoption, the City Clerk of the City of Elko is hereby directed to have this 

ordinance published by title only, together with the Councilpersons voting for or against its 

passage in a newspaper of general circulation within the time established by law, for at least one 

publication. 

 

SECTION 6.  This ordinance shall be effective upon the publication mentioned, unless 

otherwise stated. 

 

PASSED AND ADOPTED this --th day of ---, 2019 by the following vote of the Elko City 

Council. 

 

VOTE: 

 

AYES:      

 

NAYES:       

 

ABSENT:       

 

ABSTAIN:     None 

 

CITY OF ELKO 

 

 

           By:__________________________________ 

            REECE KEENER, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

 

 

_______________________________ 

KELLY WOOLDRIDGE, City Clerk 





























































                    Elko County Planning Commission 
 

                  540 COURT STREET, SUITE 104, ELKO, NV  89801 
                PH.  (775)738-6816, FAX (775) 738-4581 

 
 
 

           ELKO COUNTY PLANNING COMMISSION       
MINUTES 

 
    THURSDAY, FEBRUARY 21, 2019 

 
 

 
5:15 P.M.    CALL TO ORDER: 
 
The meeting of the Elko County Planning Commission was called to order by Chairman Galyen 
at 5:15 PM on Thursday, February 21, 2019, in suite 102 of the Nannini Administration 
Building, Elko, Nevada. 
 
 
ROLL CALL: 
 

Members Present: Mike Judd 
   David A. Galyen 

Richard Genseal 
Mark Wetmore 
Dena Hartley 
Jack D. Larason 
 

Absent : David Hough 
 

Others Present: Corey L. Rice, PLS, WRS, Senior Planner 
Peggy Pierce-Fitzgerald, CFM, Planning Tech / GIS Operator 
Rand Greenburg, District Attorney’s Office 
 

      
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE: 
 
Chairman Galyen led the pledge of allegiance. 
 
 
 
 



Elko County Planning Commission  
Meeting Minutes 
February 21, 2019 
Page 2 
 

  

APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
 
January 24, 2019 regular meeting minutes. 
 
 
MOTION:  Commissioner Hartley made a motion to approve the minutes of the 
January 24, 2019 meeting as written, Commissioner Judd seconded.  Motion passed.  
 
VOTE: 

    AYE: David A. Galyen 
Mike Judd 
Dena Hartley 
Richard Genseal 
Mark Wetmore 
Jack D. Larason 

 
      NAY:  
     
ABSENT:   David Hough 
 

             ABSTENTIONS:  
 
 

COMMENTS BY THE GENERAL PUBLIC 
 
None 
 
 
PRELIMINARY HEARINGS 
 
None 
 
 
PUBLIC HEARINGS 
 
A. 18-1500-0004, Elko County School District 
 
Corey Rice stated that the applicant has requested that this be continued until further notice. 
 
Application: An application submitted by Elko County School District requesting an alternate 
compliance to Elko County Planning Commission Resolution No. 1-2018 (PCR 1-2018).  
Specific to item (H) in PCR 1-2018 and that portion of relief granted to Item (H) by the Elko 
County Commission on the 7th day of March 2018 pertaining to Parkchester Way. 
 



Elko County Planning Commission  
Meeting Minutes 
February 21, 2019 
Page 3 
 

  

Location:  APN 050-001-032 and 050-006-001.  Parkchester Way between Country Club 
Parkway and Parkchester Drive located between Blocks 2 and 3 of Spring Creek Tract 106-D, as 
recorded in the Office of the Elko County Recorder as File No. 72495.  Situated in a portion of 
Section 18, Township 33 North, Range 57 East, M.D.B.& M. 
 
Applicant / Owner: Elko County School District 
     
Chairman Galyen asked Mr. Greenburg if there is a limitation to how many times an applicant 
can continue before it’s vacated. 
 
Rand Greenburg stated that he was not aware of any limitations. 
 
 
B. 19-6000-0001, Randy Burgess 
 
Application:  An application submitted by Randy Burgess requesting a variance to increase an 
accessory building height from twenty feet (20’) to twenty-seven feet six inches (27’6”) in a 
Agricultural Residential (AR) zoning district for equipment and tool storage and maintenance 
(garage) per ECC 4-9-5. 

 
Location:  APN 006-09J-018.  Located off of Burgess Lane, 2.13 acres being the SE1/4 NW1/4 
SE1/4 NW1/4 of Section 8, T.34N., R.55E., M.D.B.& M., Elko County, Nevada. Physical 
address is 1150 Burgess Lane, Elko, Nevada. 

 
Applicant:  Randy Burgess 
 
Owner:  Hal R. & D’Ette L. Burgess. 
 
Corey Rice read the staff report for Application 19-6000-0001, Randy Burgess. 
 
Commissioner Larason commented that this applicant has put the cart in front of the horse.  He 
commented that he’s a little confused on how they can go forward on this. 
 
Corey commented that the applicant had come in with an application for a building permit which 
was required by his insurance company.  He stated that at that time, when Thom started 
reviewing the plans he realized that it was in violation of zoning codes with accessory building 
height.  Corey stated that this is the best way that he can see to accommodate the applicant so he 
could move forward and get his building permit.  He stated that Mr. Ingersoll will not issue a 
building permit unless this board approves this variance. 
 
Commissioner Larason stated that it seems to be a misnomer here or something, because it says 
that there will not be any fabrication done out of this building nor will any employees work out 
of this building.  He said that in order to put merchandise or material inside of the building, it 
causes a person to go inside of the building to do this. 
 



Elko County Planning Commission  
Meeting Minutes 
February 21, 2019 
Page 4 
 

  

Corey stated that the way he has explained it, is that it will have to be done by the residence of 
the property, which is Mr. Burgess. 
 
Commissioner Larason commented that he’s not any clearer on this item at this time. 
 
Corey stated that this was the best way that he felt that they could accommodate the applicant. 
 
Commissioner Hartley commented that she is disappointed that the designer and Mr. Burgess 
built this without permits. 
Corey stated that he doesn’t think that Mr. Burgess engaged the services of Mr. Lattin until after 
he had already built the shell. 
 
Commissioner Judd asked Corey if they are going to address the height of buildings in the near 
future. 
 
Corey said yes and this board did vote on passing the height on to 25 feet, and then giving me the 
administrative authority to go up to 27 ¼ feet.  The first step has been approved by the Elko 
County Commission, but it has not been finalized yet. 
 
Commissioner Judd stated that this would still be 5 ¾ inches high. 
 
Corey stated that this would still be above what he would have the administrative authority to 
approve without coming before this board. 
 
Commissioner Genseal commented that he’s struggling with this a little.  He stated that this 
individual, who is a license contractor, builds a building without a permit, without getting the 
necessary paperwork, documentation, and inspections to get this building built, comes back to us 
because he wants to increase the height, and we are supposed to reward him by giving him a 
variance on this. 
 
Corey stated that he does understand his concern on this, and that is why he put in the staff report 
that he does not have any recommendations for approval or denial. 
 
Commissioner Genseal said that all he can think of is that when he was building an addition onto 
his house, and if I would have done this, he would have probably been shut down and it would 
be an empty shell even today. 
 
Corey stated that he will be penalized in some form or another through Building & Safety 
Department, because Thom will charge him double the permit fees. 
 
Commissioner Hartley said plus it’s being investigated by the State Contractor’s Board. 
 
Commissioner Genseal stated that it has been sent to the Stated Contractor’s Board for 
investigation. 
 



Elko County Planning Commission  
Meeting Minutes 
February 21, 2019 
Page 5 
 

  

Corey commented that he’s been told that they are really stepping down on situations like this 
with this new board that they have. 
 
Commissioner Genseal stated that his problem with this is the fact that he can’t see this board 
rewarding someone until all the other stuff is taken care of, then come back and ask for the 
variance.  And once that is done, then move forward with this application.  
 
Corey stated that we are kind of chasing our tails with that because Thom can’t issue a building 
permit until the variance is granted. 
 
Commissioner Wetmore commented that he understands the frustration, and the cart was before 
the horse, but he thinks it needs to be split apart though.  The issue of the no permit really isn’t in 
our jurisdiction and the height is.  The other aspect of this that went off track is being dealt with 
and is really out of our hands.  He stated that we are not the Contractor’s Board and we’re not the 
Building Department.  What we are dealing with is the additional 7 ½ feet, and really that’s it at 
this level. 
 
Commissioner Judd stated that he agrees with that but as he remembers correctly they had a 
license contractor come in here, and we had to give him a variance because he built a house in 
the middle of a road.  That was not very long ago and in the same area.  He said that he doesn’t 
see where they can stop him because a height doesn’t seem as serious as building a house in the 
middle of the road. 
 
Chairman Galyen said that he thinks it would be better to have a completed building for 
aesthetics purposes than an empty shell for the neighbors to look at. 
 
Commissioner Larason commented, that by us approaching it as a singular issue of just the 
building height, I feel that you’re asking me to address something that doesn’t exist. 
 
Chairman Galyen asked Commissioner Larason to explain his comment. 
 
Commissioner Larason stated that if there was not a building permit, then hence no building 
should be there.  So now you’re asking for a variance to increase the height to a building that 
theoretically doesn’t exist. Physically it might be there, but it isn’t there. 
 
Commissioner Wetmore stated that they all agree, it’s not a great situation, but at this stage, what 
other options do they have. 
 
Commissioner Judd stated that whether it’s there or not there, it’s there.  And it’s either going to 
sit there as a shell, that doesn’t do any good.  There’s ways to make it really hard, like digging 
down to show the foundations.  He stated that he thinks he got himself in a world of hurt, but I 
can’t see us denying it. 
 
Commissioner Hartley stated that this situation is a lot different than the house in the middle of 
the road.  Especially the fact that this gentleman is a contractor and certainly knows better and if 



Elko County Planning Commission  
Meeting Minutes 
February 21, 2019 
Page 6 
 

  

we grant him his variance before he even has a permit, I think it sets a precedence that says it’s 
ok to build without a permit.  She stated that she thinks they should throw it back on Thom 
Ingersoll and see if he will grant the permit. 
 
Corey stated that a few months ago they had a building height application come in and it came 
through knowing the proper process without having the shell already built.  But the building 
permit could not be issued until the variance of the building height was granted.  He stated that 
we are kind of in the same situation, here even though the shell of the building already exist.  He 
stated that Planning & Zoning has to sign off on these building permits just as Building & Safety 
does. 
 
Commission Larason stated that in Clark County they had a procedure where if someone built a 
structure without a permit, there was a fee that they paid, and the inspectors would come out and 
do an inspection of it to see if it complied with up to the point of where it was.  He asked if they 
had a procedure like that. 
 
Corey stated that the building department will be checking the structural integrity of the existing 
shell once the building permit is issued.  Corey said that there is not an instrument in place for 
them to go out and inspect the building, then issue the permit.  The permit needs to be issued 
before there is something for them to inspect.  And a professional consultant will have to be 
required to show structural calculations on the building. 
 
Commissioner Genseal stated that if he had not come in for the variance and this structure would 
have been built out there for however without anyone ever knowing it, he wouldn’t be facing any 
penalties.  If the board approves it, he will be granted his variance, and he gets his building, and 
moves on happy go lucky.  We basically are condoning his actions as a contractor to build a 
building without a permit and give him a variance on top of this. 
 
Corey stated that Commissioner Genseal is right.  If his insurance company wouldn’t have told 
him he had to have a building permit, the county may have never known that the building was 
ever built.  He may have finished it off and everything.  Corey commented that his insurance 
company told him that he needed to have a building permit.  That is when he came into 
Community Development, and that is when all these issues came to. 
 
Chairman Galyen asked what kind of contract work does he do. 
 
Corey stated that he’s not 100% sure, but he thinks he does some fencing work and maybe some 
foundation work for prefab homes. 
 
Commissioner Judd asked Corey if he said that the Contractor’s Board was going to investigate 
it. 
 
Corey said yes, the contractor’s board is going to investigate it.  He said that Thom has sent a 
report to them, and Mr. Ingersoll has been told that the new board is stepping down really hard 



Elko County Planning Commission  
Meeting Minutes 
February 21, 2019 
Page 7 
 

  

on situations like these to try to get them to stop.  Corey also stated that Building & Safety will 
be charging them double the permit fees because he started construction prior to having a permit. 
 
Commissioner Wetmore stated that the punishment here is going be coming in the form of 
additional fees, additional expense for getting a design professional and potentially losing his 
license from the State Contractor’s Board.  He stated that he would like to stick to the issue of 
just the height variance.  We need to take a bad situation and try to clean it up the best we can.  
 
Rand Greenburg commented that the ordinance hasn’t passed yet so the board is still only 
working with 20 feet. 
 
 
MOTION:  Commissioner Wetmore made a motion to approve Application 19-6000-0001, 
Randy Burgess, for a variance to increase an accessory building height from twenty feet 
(20’) to twenty-seven feet six inches (27’6”) in an Agricultural Residential (AR) zoning 
district with staff’s recommendations, conditions, and findings, seconded by Commissioner 
Judd.  Motion passed. 
 
VOTE: 

    AYE: David A. Galyen 
Jack D. Larason 
Mike Judd 
Mark Wetmore 
 

   NAY: Dena Hartley 
Richard Genseal 

  
ABSENT:   David Hough 
 

 ABSTENTIONS: 
 
 
OTHER BUSINESS 
 
Chairman Galyen stated that besides the State Regulations that say they have to have Other 
Business on the agenda, he’s been there 13 years, and he’s never seen Other Business, what is it 
for? 
 
Rand stated that he doesn’t know and will find more out about it. 
 
 
STAFF UPDATE AND COMMISSIONERS COMMENTS 
 
Rand stated that one of the questions asked of him at the last meeting was regarding a surveyor 
and a client and the possibility of abstaining and coming down to make a comment.  Under the 



Elko County Planning Commission  
Meeting Minutes 
February 21, 2019 
Page 8 
 

  

Ethics, it is not permitted for any board member to represent or counsel anybody who would 
come before this board.  So in that situation if any other business you might be doing and you 
have a client that might come before this board, you couldn’t make any comments, you couldn’t 
represent them, or you couldn’t counsel them.  You would still have to abstain because they were 
a customer or business client of yours.  Rand stated that you could be a representative for 
yourself.  If you are an applicant, you can appear before the board as the applicant.  But if you 
have a client, and that client comes before the board, you couldn’t come before the board and 
make comments for that client. 
 
Chairman Galyen stated that Elko Code 4-1-10, it says that if we are on the board and are 
abstaining, we must declare that abstention prior to discussing the agenda item and not at the 
time of voting. 
 
Rand stated, that’s generally when there is a conflict of interest, you have to disclose that before 
discussion occurs.  You actually have to disclose it to me and I am the one who determines if you 
get to abstain or not.  The way that the Ethics Law is written, it’s not the board member who 
decides if they abstain or not.  It’s actually the legal counsel who makes that decision.  So if 
something comes up and you see it on the agenda, it would be nice if you have the opportunity, if 
you would contact me prior to the meeting.  It’s extremely helpful, then I can make that 
determination prior to the meeting.  
 
Corey Rice stated that he has given Raintree Construction a deadline of March 15, 2019 to have 
a Boundary Line Adjustment into Planning & Zoning. 
 
Rand was asked for the reasons for the board to vote Nay on an item.  In general you are trying 
to avoid anything that is arbitrary.  If you are saying Nay because your gut tells you that you 
should say Nay, that’s probably not good enough.  He said that it needs to be factually based.  
Tonight was a good example.  You guys did a good job on deliberating on this and really showed 
some facts on things on why you wanted to say Nay or Aye on the issue of granting this 
variance.  It just needs to be factually based.  You guys have a lot of discretion as a board. 
 
Commissioner Wetmore asked, regarding the lot line adjustment for Raintree, I am assuming 
they are purchasing the property behind them. 
 
Corey stated that they are working on the contract details of it now, so they will be purchasing a 
portion of that property to ensure that their building isn’t within their setbacks.  Corey stated that 
they are purchasing enough land behind their building to make sure that their building is in the 
envelope that they can be in. 
 
Chairman Galyen stated that this will take care of the setback, but was there ever an issue of 
them attaching an addition to their structure that was permitted to build. 
 
Corey stated, that’s a question for the Building & Safety and that will be addressed. 
 



Elko County Planning Commission  
Meeting Minutes 
February 21, 2019 
Page 9 
 

  

Commissioner Larason asked legal counsel that if there is something that could be checked to 
determine if we ought to add a step to the County’s building procedure, to where this type of an 
incident doesn’t come up again.  If there can be an additional step, that in an event when 
someone builds a structure or finds a structure that they own, and absent of having to be lawfully 
done, if there couldn’t be an application that they would make with the Building Department for 
a preliminary safety examination or whatever prior to any request being put in for obtaining a 
building permit.  And that way this board wouldn’t be so conflicted on having to grant variance 
or request on something that really hasn’t even made it to that point yet. 
 
Commissioner Genseal stated that it would be nice to have that to fall back to where Building & 
Safety would have the authority to go back and charge the full permit price before the variance is 
done. 
 
Rand stated that he would certainly try to draft something up.  We do have under our ordinance 
enforcement which entails fees and citations.  Corey and I are working on getting that established 
so he can do that.  I don’t know if that would satisfy this board’s intent for this, but that may be a 
good route in taking care of these situations. 
 
Chairman Galyen asked if Commissioner Hough’s absence excused.  The answer was no. 
 
 
COMMENTS BY THE GENERAL PUBLIC 
 
None 
 
 
ADJOURNMENT 
   
Meeting adjourned at 5:58 pm 
Minutes Clerk:  Peggy Pierce-Fitzgerald 
Date Approved:  April 18, 2019 
            
 
(Staff Reports are available on the Elko County website at:  
http://www.elkocoutynv.nt/meetings/board_of_commissioners/index.html) 


	05-07-19 Agenda.pdf (p.1-3)
	04-02-2019 Draft Minutes.pdf (p.4-16)
	Item I.A.1 - PC Res 1-19 Master Plan Amendment.pdf (p.17-23)
	Item I.B.1 - Initiate Amendment 3-2-2 & 3-2-3.pdf (p.24-45)
	Zoning Bulletin - 3-10-19.pdf (p.46-53)
	Zoning Bulletin - 3-25-19.pdf (p.54-61)
	Zoning Bulletin - 4-10-19.pdf (p.62-69)
	County Agenda.pdf (p.70-74)
	ECPC February 21, 2019 Minutes.pdf (p.75-83)

